
 

 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 
Meeting 
 

Policy and Resources Select Committee 
 

Date and Time Thursday, 5th November, 2020 at 10.00 am 
  
Place Virtual MS Teams Meeting 
  
Enquiries to members.services@hants.gov.uk 
  
John Coughlan CBE 
Chief Executive 
The Castle, Winchester SO23 8UJ 
 
FILMING AND BROADCAST NOTIFICATION 
This meeting is being held remotely and will be recorded and broadcast live via the 
County Council’s website. 

AGENDA 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 All Members who believe they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in 

any matter to be considered at the meeting must declare that interest 
and, having regard to Part 3 Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members’ Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter is 
discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with 
Paragraph 1.6 of the Code.  Furthermore all Members with a Personal 
Interest in a matter being considered at the meeting should consider, 
having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 4 of the Code, whether such interest 
should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, Paragraph 5 of the 
Code, consider whether it is appropriate to leave the meeting while the 
matter is discussed, save for exercising any right to speak in accordance 
with the Code. 
 

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 
 To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 17 September 

2020. 
 

4. DEPUTATIONS   
 
 To receive any deputations notified under Standing Order 12. 

 

Public Document Pack



5. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 
 To receive any announcements the Chairman may wish to make. 

 
6. PRESENTATION FROM THE LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIPS   
 
 To receive a joint presentation from the Enterprise M3 and Solent Local 

Enterprise Partnerships on the projects supported over the last year and 
use of Government funds. 
 

7. ECONOMIC RECOVERY UPDATE AND MEASURES  (Pages 7 - 40) 
 
 To receive a presentation from the Assistant Director for Economic 

Development on the economy and recovery following the Covid-19 
outbreak. 
 

8. HAMPSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY STRATEGY GROUP  (Pages 41 - 
50) 

 
 To receive a report giving an update on the Hampshire Community 

Safety Strategy Group. 
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 51 - 56) 
 
 For the Select Committee to review and approve the work programme. 

 
 
 
 
ABOUT THIS AGENDA: 

On request, this agenda can be provided in alternative versions (such as 
large print, Braille or audio) and in alternative languages. 
 
ABOUT THIS MEETING: 

The press and public are welcome to observe the public sessions of the 
meeting via the webcast. 



 

1 
 

AT A MEETING of the Policy and Resources Select Committee of HAMPSHIRE 
COUNTY COUNCIL held virtually on Microsoft Teams  on Thursday, 17 

September, 2020 
 

Chairman: 
* Councillor Jonathan Glen 

 
* Councillor Keith Evans 
  Councillor Adam Carew 
* Councillor Fran Carpenter 
* Councillor Adrian Collett 
* Councillor Roger Huxstep 
* Councillor Peter Latham 
* Councillor Anna McNair Scott 
* Councillor Kirsty North 
* Councillor Russell Oppenheimer 
 

*Councillor Jackie Porter 
*Councillor Bruce Tennent 
*Councillor Michael Westbrook 
*Councillor Bill Withers 

 
 

 
*Present 

 
Also present with the agreement of the Chairman: Councillor Stephen Reid, Executive 
Member for Commercial Strategy, Human Resources and Performance and Councillor 
Judith Grajewski, Executive Member for Public Health. 

 
 

140.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
No apologies were received for this meeting. Councillor Chris Carter attended 
the meeting as the Conservative substitute member. 

141.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Members were mindful that where they believed they had a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest in any matter considered at the meeting they must declare 
that interest at the time of the relevant debate and, having regard to the 
circumstances described in Part 3, Paragraph 1.5 of the County Council's 
Members' Code of Conduct, leave the meeting while the matter was discussed, 
save for exercising any right to speak in accordance with Paragraph 1.6 of the 
Code. Furthermore Members were mindful that where they believed they had a 
Personal interest in a matter being considered at the meeting they considered 
whether such interest should be declared, and having regard to Part 5, 
Paragraph 5 of the Code, considered whether it was appropriate to leave the 
meeting whilst the matter was discussed, save for exercising any right to speak 
in accordance with the Code. 
 

142.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the last meeting were reviewed and agreed. 

143.   DEPUTATIONS  
 
No deputations were received for this meeting. 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

144.   CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Chairman made no announcements on this occasion. 
 

145.   CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY  
 
Councillor Porter declared a non-pecuniary interest as the Cabinet Member for 
the Built Environment and Wellbeing at Winchester City Council. 
 
Councillor Huxstep declared a non-pecuniary interest as a County Council 
trustee on Winchester Action on Climate Change (WINACC), one of the 
organisations working with the County Council on the Strategy. 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Director of Economy, Transport and 
Environment on the Climate Change Strategy (Item 6 in the Minute Book) which 
had also been considered by Cabinet at its meeting in July.  
 
The development of impact assessment tools to integrate with the Council’s 
future decision making process was highlighted. It was confirmed that 
stakeholder events had been held and a number of projects to both engage with 
communities and provide advice were detailed.   
 
During discussion, it was agreed that the Committee receives an annual update 
on the Climate Change Action Plan and that this be included as an item on the 
Committee’s Work Programme. 
 
The Committee welcomed the report and thanked officers for their work and the 
progress that had been achieved. It was recognised that the direct influence of 
local government was limited and therefore working with partners and 
communities was essential. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Select Committee notes: 
 
a) the County Council’s Climate Change Strategy 2020-2025;   
b) the Climate Change Action Plan 2020-2025;   
c) the details on a range of climate change activity and programmes already 
underway within the Council towards meeting the climate change targets 
including the launch of three climate change projects 
 

146.   MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY  
 
The Committee considered a report of Director of Corporate Resources on the 
Medium Term Financial Strategy (Item 7 in the Minute Book). 
 
The report was introduced and the level of unfunded loss to date were drawn to 
the Committee’s attention. The scenarios regarding government funding and 
various possible outcomes set out in the report were detailed. 
 

Page 4



3 
 

In welcoming the report, the Committee highlighted the importance of engaging 
with government over the County Council’s financial situation. Members were 
made aware that liaison with Treasurer societies and the MHCLG was higher 
than ever. 
 
Officers were thanked for their continued hard work since the Covid-19 outbreak. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Committee notes the contents of the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
update report. 
 

147.   WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Committee considered a report of Director of Transformation and 
Governance – Corporate Services (Item 8 in the Minute Book) regarding the 
Work Programme. 
 
During discussion, it was agreed that the following topics be included with 
timings to be confirmed: 
 

 Yearly update on the Climate Change Action Plan 

 Financial Impact of Covid 

 Work of the Local Enterprise Partnerships 

 Consultations Policy 

 Broadband and the Gigabit Voucher Scheme 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Work Programme be agreed with the additions referred to above. 
 
 
 
 
  

 Chairman,  
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Economic Recovery – Update

Policy & Resources

Select Committee

David Fletcher

Assistant Director – Economic Development

5 November 2020

P
age 7

A
genda Item

 7



Economic Recovery - Data

P
age 8



Fall and rise of GDP

-25

-20

-15

-10

-5

0

5

10

15

Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug

2020

UK

HIOW*

Source: ONS (2020) and *HCC/EBIS estimate

-7.2%

-20.1%

2.8%

9.6%

6.6%m
/m

, 
%

-20%

q/q

2.1%

P
age 9



Impact on labour market (1)

Jobs postings in HIOW

16

20

24

28

32

36

Jul 20 Aug 20

Hampshire & Isle of Wight 2020

Hampshire & Isle of Wight 2019

th
ou

sa
nd

-50%P
age 10



Impact on labour market (2)

Unemployment: claimant count, 

HIOW

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

10 

20 

30 

40 

50 

60 

70 

80 

90 

1990 1995 2000 2005 2010 2015 2020

UK recessions

Hampshire & Isle of Wight

March to July

- number: 26,075 --> 63,385

- change: +37,310 (+143%)

- youth: + 8,170 (+162%)

- rate: 2.1% --> 5.2% 

Source: ONS (2020)

th
ou

sa
nd

P
age 11



Jobs supported by Government schemes

Residents supported - HIOW Furloughed residents by sector – South East

Accommodation & food 77%

Arts, Entertainment etc. 72%

Construction 55%

Wholesale & retail etc. 40%

-----------------------------------------------

Public admin & defence 1%

Finance & insurance 7%

Health / Education 11% / 13%

Information & comms 16%

0

40

80

120

160

200

240

280

320

June Aug June Aug

Furloughed SEISS

352,300

147,300

th
ou

sa
nd

P
age 12



Confidence returning?

P
age 13



Winter Economy Plan

P
age 14



Winter Economy Plan

• New Job Support Scheme

• Self employed income support – extended 

to end April 2021

• VAT cut for hospitality/tourism – extended 

end of March 2021

• Business loans – payback extended from 6 

to 10 years

P
age 15



New Government job support 

scheme

• Min 33% of hours 

worked

• Scheme funds one 

third of hours not 

worked

• Employer funds 

hours worked + 

one third of hours 

not worked

• 6 months from Nov

P
age 16



Hampshire – Emerging Priorities

P
age 17



Emerging Priorities (Short Term)

• Continued Govt support for businesses

• Domestic tourism support

• Employment and skills support including 

Kickstart scheme, Construction Skills Fund

• Cruise sector support?

• Southampton Airport – planning 

• Local retail – high streets and e-commerce

P
age 18



Emerging Priorities (Medium Term)

• Business support – including financial 

(grants, community bank)

• Innovation support – tech start up 

programme

• Work hubs – urban centres

• Digital connectivity – multiple proposals

P
age 19



Emerging Priorities (Long Term)

• Freeport status – competitive process

• Major regeneration, housing and 

infrastructure projects

• Green recovery/low carbon growth

• Circular economy – local supply chains

P
age 20



Sectoral / thematic perspectives

P
age 21



Innovation

P
age 22



Hampshire Innovation Roundtable

P
age 23



In
n

o
va

to
rs

N
o

n
-I

n
n

o
va

to
rs

Revenue growth (per year)

In
n

o
va

to
rs

N
o

n
-I

n
n

o
va

to
rs

In
n

o
va

to
rs

N
o

n
-I

n
n

o
va

to
rs

Innovative firms grow 
twice as fast, both in 
employment and sales, 
as firms that fail to 
innovate

Source: https://www.nesta.org.uk/documents/28/business_growth_and_innovation.pdf

Innovation drives growth

P
age 24



UK BERD is below OECD – even when adjusted for industrial structure

P
age 25



Innovation – key issues (1)

• Better connected partners – universities, 

science park, Oxford Innovation, Qinetiq, 

SetSquared, etc.

• Government support

– More effective local interface (Innovate UK)

– Too many initiatives

P
age 26



Innovation – key issues (2)

• Centre of Excellence / region-wide 

accelerator? – emerging technologies

• Innovation ecosystem factors

– Access to finance

– Culture

– Infrastructure

– Talent

– Access to markets

P
age 27



Rural

P
age 28



Rural – tourism/hospitality

• Networks have proved to be key – Go New 

Forest, Hampshire Fare, etc

• Demand – staycation +, social distancing –

• LEADER programme – valued resource 

(ends Dec 2021)

• Frustrations – small grant schemes 

(ERDF), broadband (online bookings)

P
age 29



Rural – business/enterprise (1)

• Outdoor activities – land-based, forestry, 

fisheries – less impacted

• Food & drink producers – alternative routes 

to market key – home deliveries, local 

shops

• Support – free online mentoring highly 

valued (FSB)

P
age 30



Rural – business/enterprise (2)

• Planning – challenges – repurposing of 

buildings, rural housing

• Brexit – key issue for rural businesses

• Employment - concerns around end of job 

retention scheme

• Local sourcing – increased consciousness 

– opportunity?

P
age 31



Freeports - Update

P
age 32



P
age 33



Vision

• “Innovative hubs that boost the economy 

by helping businesses to invest in their 

machinery, infrastructure and staff”

• “Bringing jobs, investment and prosperity to 

some of our most deprived communities 

around the UK”

• “Boost global trade, by showcasing the 

best of British industry, technology and 

innovation to the rest of the world”

P
age 34



Process

• Freeport coalitions – of international and 

local businesses, academic institutions, 

ports and local authorities

• Policy and bidding process - including 

Bidding Prospectus – anticipated launch 

late 2020?

• In place by late 2021?

P
age 35



Freeport incentives

• Customs flexibilities, to provide relief from duties, 

import taxes and administrative burdens;

• Tax measures to incentivise private investment –

eg capital allowances;

• Regulatory flexibilities – eg permitted 

development rights, local development orders

• Investment in infrastructure – transport, digital –

Freeport Challenge Fund?

P
age 36



Freeport sites/boundaries

• Customs sites – primary and subzones – in 

or near port

• Tax site – single contiguous defined site –

primarily underdeveloped land – 300-600 

Ha

• Outer boundary – 25-45km – planning, 

regeneration, innovation 

P
age 37



Hampshire - considerations

• Who leads / co-ordinates the bid?

• Does the applicant need to be an SPV?

• Are all relevant local planning authorities 

on board?

• On which sites is our proposal based?

• Bid needs to be compelling, competitive 

and of relevance at a UK level

P
age 38



Thank You

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

Report 

 
Committee: 

 
Policy and Resources Select Committee 
 

Date: 5 November 2020 
 

Title: Hampshire Community Safety Strategy Group  
 

Report From: Director of Adults’ Health and Care  
 

Contact name: Robert Ormerod  

Tel:    0370 779 6752   Email: Robert.ormerod@hants.gov.uk  

 

Purpose of this Report  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the work of the Hampshire 

Community Safety Strategy Group.  
 

Recommendation  

2. That the Policy and Resources Select Committee note the progress on the 
work of the Hampshire Community Safety Strategy Group (HCSSG) in 
establishing strategic community safety priorities for Hampshire and for 
overseeing effective multi-agency collaborative arrangements.  

 
Executive Summary   

3. This report seeks to provide an update and assurance on progress of the work 
of the Hampshire Community Safety Strategy Group in overseeing multi-
agency collaboration at the county level in pursuit of agreed community safety 
priorities. 

 
Contextual information  

4. The Hampshire Community Safety Strategy Group (HCSSG) was (re) 
established in July 2018 and meets quarterly.  It is required to prepare a 
Community Safety Agreement based on a strategic assessment for the area 
and to oversee the county-level collaborative arrangements for addressing 
these priorities and how the responsible authorities under community safety 
legislation might otherwise work together to reduce crime and disorder or 
combat substance misuse. 

 
Membership of the Hampshire Community Safety Strategy Group (HCSSG)  

Page 41

Agenda Item 8



5. The HCSSG is chaired by the Director of Adults’ Health and Care and is 
attended by the Director of Children’s Services, Director of Public Health, the 
Assistant Chief Executive and leads from Emergency Planning, Mental Health 
and Substance Misuse, Safeguarding Services for Children and Adults, Trading 
Standards, Supporting Families and the Youth Offending Team.  Senior 
partners attend from representing HMP Winchester, the National Probation 
Service, Community Rehabilitation Service, Hampshire Constabulary, 
Hampshire Fire and Rescue Service, the Hampshire Clinical Commissioning 
Group Partnership, the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner, the Local 
Criminal Justice Board, the Civilian Military Partnership, district and borough 
housing services, and community safety officers from Hampshire’s district and 
borough community safety partnerships.  Lead officers from Portsmouth and 
Southampton attend as observers.     

 
Hampshire Strategic Assessment for Community Safety and Hampshire 
Community Safety Agreement. 

6. The HCSSG has agreed a Strategic Assessment in March 2019 and reported 
to Policy and Resources Select Committee in November 2019 and Cabinet in 
December 2019.  This remains a live document reflecting dynamic national and 
local priorities.  Following the December 2019 Cabinet, the Strategic 
Assessment and County Agreement were updated to include the Serious 
Violence Problem profile for Hampshire and the multi-agency Response Plan 
prepared by the Hampshire Violence Reduction Unit.  This element and the 
central funding contribution for 2020-21 were subsequently approved by the 
Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Home Office in February 
2020. The strategic assessment and Community Safety Agreement will be 
updated for March 2021 with regard to updates in the Police Force 
Assessment, the Joint Strategic Needs assessment and the Serious Violence 
Problem profile. 

 
Oversight of the county-wide multi agency arrangements in delivering the 
Community Safety Agreement. 

7. The HCSSG has reviewed progress quarterly against the strategic priorities in 
the Community Safety Agreement and continues to provide assurance of 
continual strategic collaborative arrangements.  During its last two meetings, 
there has been a specific focus on the impact of Covid-19 on the strategic 
priorities and collaborative arrangements.  Below is a summary of the key 
developments against each priority: 

 
Priority 1 – The threat of serious organised crime, especially related to the 
exploitation of children, including ‘county lines’ gangs  

8.  Nationally Covid-1919 has had little impact on the county lines and serious 
organised crime activity with business models operating as usual with some 
changed methods of operation.  This remains an area of focus for partnership 
activity around serious and organised crime.  There are identified national risks 
being addressed relating to: 

Page 42



 a shift from travelling county lines drugs suppliers to recruitment of young 
people living in counties 

 targeting young people who had no current involvement with services -a 
“clean skin” approach. 

 a reduction in the quality and purity of drugs due to reduced supply 
 

9. In Hampshire intelligence was showing little evidence of price and quality 
changes.  Hampshire Constabulary had participated in Operation Venetic 
where nationally £50m drugs had been seized which is modest progress 
against a backdrop of the UK being the highest importer of cocaine and heroin 
in Europe. 

10. Under Operation Monument Hampshire Constabulary has continued work with 
the London Metropolitan, West Midlands and Merseyside forces representing 
the key supply sources for county lines with around 80% of Hampshire’s county 
lines trade originating from London.  In Hampshire this has focused on the 
“middle market” where much of the activity is co-ordinated.  Regional and local 
drugs networks and county lines activities had been mapped with county lines 
activity predominant in the north of the county and more established local drugs 
networks in Southampton.  A dedicated team is driving enforcement activity 
which is producing positive results with arrests with sufficient evidence to 
secure remands and prosecutions often with guilty pleas for drug supply 
offences.  Importantly this is also yielding good intelligence to reveal other 
networks and vulnerable people being targeted for exploitation.  The 
constabulary is working closely with districts in tactical co-ordinating meetings 
and Fortress meetings to develop safeguarding plans for those identified at 
risk.  A peer review of all districts is being conducted to ensure consistency and 
quality of approach and the outcome will be shared with partners.  The sharing 
of intelligence with MET teams and children’s partnerships is critical and there 
is specific work around missing people who are deemed high risk.   

11. The Constabulary, working with the multi-agency Violence Reduction Unit  is 
also looking to adopt amended practices for police encounters with under 25s, 
including stop and search, introducing a trauma informed approach in line with 
a common strategic approach by partners.   

12. The challenges being addressed by partners include limitations in the 
safeguarding powers of local authorities, including for children in local authority 
care, to restrict movement, monitor and manage behaviour, including where 
individuals are attempting to pursue financial gain.  This complexity 
emphasises the need to continue to develop mutual understanding of roles and 
powers, and work closely to manage risk using expertise such as that in the 
Willow Team. 

13. In terms of preventative approaches there is a focus on partnership activity with 
Project Gateway, the Youth Offending Team and local children’s partnerships 
to determine the underlying risk and issues driving involvement of young 
people and to break the cycle, providing positive opportunities and creating 
aspiration.  Excluded children remains a concerning area for focus. Police 
Education Partnership managers are working closely with schools and local 

Page 43



authorities to ensure a long-term co-ordinated approach to a number of school-
based interventions. 

14. The partnership is looking to bring further coherence to all aspect of drug relate 
harm and risk across enforcement, treatment and preventative work streams.  
There is also a concerted effort for partners to further increase intelligence 
reports to the Constabulary. 

Priority 2 - The increase in serious violence including knife crime affecting 
young people 

15.A multi-agency Violence Reduction Unit for Hampshire has been established 
led by the Director of Public Health in in conjunction with arrangements across 
the cities and the Isle of Wight headed by the Office off the Police and Crime 
Commissioner as the accountable body for Home office funding.  There has 
been continued strong partner engagement and, despite short term dedicated 
funding, a strong commitment to embed the priority and agreed interventions 
within normal service delivery. 

16.Key elements of the partnership Response Plan for 2021 include 
enhancements of the following interventions and activities using Home Office 
funding: 

 Youth Crime Prevention capacity 

 Protection of YP affected by county lines through the Willow Team with a 
focus on supporting children attending pupil referral units 

 School based interventions focusing on high risk children 

 Young adult rehabilitation serious violence intervention 

 Developing front-line workforce skills and knowledge  

 Local voluntary and community programmes in priority hot-spots 

17. The partnership is also working with the police and NHS A&E providers to 
develop the “Cardiff model” whereby A&E data is used to identify serious 
violence hotspots and impacts to inform local problem solving.  This 
contributes a significant amount to the overall picture on serious violence. 

18. The partnership has worked hard to maintain as many of the interventions as 
possible during the lockdown period although some activities have been 
paused or amended.  The partnership is working to understand both the short 
and longer-term impacts of Covid-1919 on serious violence and an updated 
problem profile is in preparation. 

19. There are strong strategic links across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight 
through the VRU Core Group which is being used to share learning and co-
ordinate interventions.  

 

Priority 3 – The interconnected impacts of mental ill-health, substance 
misuse, domestic abuse and adverse childhood experiences 

20. The strategic partnership arrangements around substance misuse, trauma, 
mental health and domestic abuse have been reviewed and strengthened with 

Page 44



a direction to ensure greater cohesion across these linked agendas as well as 
improved links across Hampshire and the Isle of Wight.  A new Mental 
Wellbeing Executive and Domestic Abuse Executive have been created 
alongside a Trauma informed Approaches Board co-chaired by the Director of 
Public health and the Assistant Chief Constable. 

21. During Covid-19, substance misuse services were continuing to be engaged 
via phone and video conferencing where possible in one to one and group 
arrangements.  Face to face meetings are being held with high risk service 
users.  Notably there had been positive engagement of young people using 
digital channels creating a potential positive legacy. 

22. There has been an increase in clients accessing alcohol services.  Efforts 
were being made to help clients access in-patient detox services with the 
challenges of social distancing.  There are some delays in appointments for 
prescriptions and there have been successful moves towards moving some 
clients from daily to weekly prescriptions.  The number of people completing 
treatments had been maintained and would be monitored monthly. 

23. The Domestic Abuse Executive is driving a more strategic approach to 
common communications, including for BAME communities, perpetrator 
interventions, support for victims, assessing demand, sharing data and 
learning, and work with young people.  There had been an increase in 
demand during Covid-19 and referral mechanisms across Hampshire and the 
Isle of Wight had been harmonised which have been welcomed by the Police.   
A number of case learning reviews of cases are in progress to assess the 
journey of families through the whole system. 

24. The Trauma Informed Approaches Board is leading a consistent approach 
with common language and branding across agencies.  A workforce 
development plan has been established with training provision by Rockpool 
using funding from health Education England.  There had been progress in 
combining police, ambulance and children’s services data to look at key risk 
factors.   

25. The Mental Health Partnership Board is developing a broad approach to 
improving mental health beyond commissioned services, having regard to 
additional risks through Covid-1919.  There has been a continued in increase 
in demand including young people moving into adult services.  The volatility of 
the Covid-19 experience has given rise to a shorter notice in new young 
people coming through the system with some significant conditions affecting 
mental health and other services requiring intense partnership working.  
Recent months have seen an unprecedented use of community treatment 
orders requiring managed plans by multi-disciplinary teams for support living 
in the community.   

26. There was a significant multi-agency drive to communicate that mental health 
services remain open to the public through GPs and Community Wellbeing 
Centres.  This is an attempt to identify and manage conditions earlier to 
achieve better outcomes.  The evidence around the impact of Covid-1919 is 
still being assessed and would inform the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment. 

Page 45



27. The HCSG is looking to ensure strong voluntary, community and faith sector 
representation on the Boards covering these areas. 

 
 
 
 

Priority 4 – The threat of radical extremism 

28. The prevent Partnership Board and the Channel Panel intervention has 
continued to function effectively during Covid-1919.  There has been a 
sustained increase in referrals to the Channel panel relating the younger age 
group. 

29. The Partnership has focused on 

 effective sharing of Counter Terrorism profiles with partners 

 working with district community safety partners to create local situation 
risk assessments 

 updating and driving workforce awareness and training 

 embedding the new national referral process 

 communication and engagement with specific stakeholders to manage 
specific risk 

 developing digital communications opportunities  

30. A separate report on PREVENT is presented at Item X on the agenda. 

 
Priority 5 – Ensuring inclusion and cohesion in a changing society  

31. The HCSSG continues to give close attention to the need to engage diverse 
stakeholders across all community safety themes and to consider how 
intelligence and communications can be more closely aligned and co-
ordinated and used across community safety priorities.  This has been 
highlighted during the attention given to the impact of Covid-19 on vulnerable 
and minority groups and the Black Lives Matters developments.   

32. Alongside the Strategic Co-ordinating Group and Tactical Co-ordinating 
Group, the  Partnership has shared information and intelligence on public 
perceptions and tensions during lockdown, and the response to current and 
potential future additional cohesion risks relating to Extinction Rebellion, the 
accommodation of asylum seekers and rough sleepers and the forthcoming 
EU Exit position. 

33. The Constabulary has been undertaking a daily and weekly assessment which 
has influenced the management of policing and community engagement 
based on experiences, evidence and potential risks.  There has been a 
significant programme of consultation on the police response and 
management of Covid-19 providing strong assurance of confidence and used 
to inform direction and the policing approach.  The HCSSG will be pursuing 

Page 46



opportunities to combine this with current engagement by local authorities and 
other public agencies to support its priorities. 

 
 
 
 

Priority 6 – The capacity challenges of voluntary support for vulnerable 
people  

34. This priority was set as a key risk based on the impact of austerity and a key 
issue affecting the broad range of community-based services which prevent the 
risk of offending and impacts on victims.  Beyond the financial position, Covid-
19 has presented further and more complex issues for the resilience of the 
sector affecting its response and role in recovery. 

35. It is clear that the response of new and existing community groups, volunteers 
and neighbourliness has highlighted the tremendous resilience of communities 
during lock-down.  Research between the County Council, the University of 
Winchester and Communities First Wessex has borne out the attitudes and 
capacity of residents to help others and the benefits they have derived.  
However, it has also confirmed several supply and demand challenges: 

 The rapid emergence of community groups will not necessarily be sustained 
for the large part beyond a crisis.   

 Some volunteers are suffering from taking on too much responsibility and 
many carers are becoming overwhelmed 

 Many volunteers within the traditional demographic could benefit from 
returning to volunteering roles but it may not safe to do so, they may have 
lost confidence or the same roles may not still exist 

 The increased amount and complexity of need is requiring new, more 
specialist volunteers with a longer-term commitment, presenting recruitment 
and development challenges for the sector to meet new role requirements 

 Those who have signed up for national schemes can become frustrated and 
the opportunity lost if they are not given immediate tasks 

36. Practical support is being offered to organisations wishing to re-open services 
focusing on those supporting the most vulnerable.  There is some positive 
quick recovery from those groups active during Covid-19, particularly those 
working with homeless, vulnerable older people, young carers and domestic 
abuse.  There were particular challenges for those traditionally offering face to 
face support and street-based outreach including those working with young 
people including around their mental wellbeing.  As well as practical barriers, 
there were capacity considerations especially in services with specialist staff 
and volunteers which are experiencing higher demand and increased need 
especially linked to financial hardship.  Citizens Advice is a positive example of 
an organisation which had responded admirably and worked well with the 
County Council by creating greater capacity to manage significant increases in 
demand. 

Page 47



37. The HCSSG is actively promoting an understanding of these challenges and 
engaging the community and voluntary sector in the partnership arrangements 
under each priority. 

 
 

Priority 7 – Creating opportunities for all children to engage in positive 
activities and to build aspiration 

38. This priority has presented major challenges as children have been largely 
house bound throughout the spring and summer.  The key focus of the work 
of Children’s Service and its partners during Covid-19 has been on ensuring 
that children are able to return to school safely which will have the biggest 
impact on community safety and children’s well-being.   

39. The priority has been to ensure schools can provide access for vulnerable 
people to attend.  There had been a major drive in social workers engaging 
with schools which has yielded excellent results with around 54% of 
vulnerable pupils in school, one of the highest rates in the country.  This is 
likely a higher rate given that some vulnerable pupils attended schools outside 
the Hampshire local authority area.  Pupil referral units would be opening as 
normal.  Home to school transport provision was presenting several significant 
challenges. 

40. During the six-week summer holidays, the provision of summer schemes had 
been a challenge.  Some schemes have taken place, but this represented 
about 40% of normal activity.  A specific DFE funded programme for 
vulnerable families which had been effective, but outcomes are yet to be 
reported. 

41. Referrals to children’s social care has begun to increase sharply and are 
currently between 15 and 20% above the level in the previous year similar 
period. This had been the case since June.  The expected surge stored up in 
lockdown was now beginning to filter through including for a number of 
teenagers with serious cases of exploitation being revealed. 

42. Staffing levels have been maintained to deal with the additional demand.  
Once the school return has settled down there would be a greater opportunity 
and desire to be able to focus again on some of the preventative interventions 
although the planning for outbreaks and potential return to home learning 
requirements remains a priority. 

 

Conclusions  

43. This report demonstrates positive progress in the work of the Hampshire 
Community Safety Strategy Group, especially during the Codid19 measures 
in ensuring greater alignment and effective multi-agency working to address 
Hampshire’s community safety priorities. 

 

  

Page 48



REQUIRED CORPORATE AND LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

yes 

 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

Document Location  

Hampshire Community Safety Strategic 

Assessment 

Hampshire Community Safety Agreement  

 

Page 49



EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 

1. Equality Duty 

The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as 
set out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 
and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation); 

- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation) and those who do not share it; 

- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who 
do not share it.  

Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 

- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 

- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low. 

2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 

http://intranet.hants.gov.uk/equality/equality-assessments.htm  No adverse impacts 

 

Page 50

http://intranet.hants.gov.uk/equality/equality-assessments.htm


HAMPSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

Report 
 

Committee: Policy and Resources Select Committee 

Date: 5 November 2020 

Title: Work Programme 

Report From: Director of Transformation and Governance – Corporate 
Services 

Contact name: Louise Pickford, Democratic and Members Services 

Tel:    0370 779 1898 Email: Louise.pickford@hants.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of the Report  

1. To review and agree the Work Programme for the Policy and Resources Select 
Committee. 

Recommendation 

2. That the Committee agrees the Work Programme as attached and makes any 
amendments as necessary. 

 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



 

REQUIRED CORPORATE OR LEGAL INFORMATION: 
 

Links to the Strategic Plan 
 

Hampshire maintains strong and sustainable economic 
growth and prosperity: 

yes 

People in Hampshire live safe, healthy and independent 
lives: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy a rich and diverse 
environment: 

yes 

People in Hampshire enjoy being part of strong, 
inclusive communities: 

Yes 

 
 
 
 

Section 100 D - Local Government Act 1972 - background documents 
  
The following documents discuss facts or matters on which this report, or an 
important part of it, is based and have been relied upon to a material extent in 
the preparation of this report. (NB: the list excludes published works and any 
documents which disclose exempt or confidential information as defined in 
the Act.) 
 
Document Location 

None  

Page 52



 

EQUALITIES IMPACT ASSESSMENT: 
 

1. Equality Duty 
 
The County Council has a duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 (‘the 
Act’) to have due regard in the exercise of its functions to the need to: 
 

- Eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation and any other conduct 
prohibited by or under the Act with regard to the protected characteristics as set 
out in section 4 of the Act (age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and 
civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and 
sexual orientation); 
- Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant 
protected characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual 
orientation) and those who do not share it; 
- Foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic within section 149(7) of the Act (see above) and persons who do 
not share it. 

 
Due regard in this context involves having due regard in particular to: 

- The need to remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons sharing a 
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic; 
- Take steps to meet the needs of persons sharing a relevant protected 
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do not share it; 
- Encourage persons sharing a relevant protected characteristic to participate in 
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is 
disproportionally low. 

 
2. Equalities Impact Assessment: 
 
This is a scrutiny review document setting out the work programme of the Committee. 
It does not therefore make any proposals which will impact on groups with protected 
characteristics. 
 

Page 53



 

WORK PROGRAMME – POLICY & RESOURCES SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Topic Issue Reason for inclusion Status and Outcomes 

5
 N

o
v

 2
0

2
0

 

1
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
2

1
 

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
2
1
 

Pre-scrutiny  
 
 

2021/22 Revenue and 
Capital Budgets  

To pre-scrutinise the budget 
proposals for the Policy & 
Resources portfolio, prior to 
approval by the Executive 
Member. 
 

Budget considered annually in January. 
(in recent years this committee has also 
received the budget setting item at the 
January meeting for additional context)  

 X 
 

 

Budget 
Monitoring 
 

 
 

(a) End of Year Financial 
Report considered at 
summer meeting, to 
see how the budget 
was managed for the 
year compared to plan.  

 
(b) Medium Term Financial 

Strategy – considered 
when appropriate to 
provide longer term 
financial context 

(a) Last considered June 2019  
 
 
 
 
 
 
(b) MTFS last considered Sept 2020. 
‘ 
 
 

 
 

   

Overview Covid-19 Financial 
Update 

For the Committee to 
receive an update regarding 
the financial impact of the 
Covid-19 crisis. 

presented at the June 2020 mtg and 
requested a further update in due 
course 

   

P
age 54



 

Topic Issue Reason for inclusion Status and Outcomes 

5
 N

o
v

 2
0

2
0
 

1
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
2

1
 

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
2
1
 

Overview 
(Annual Item) 

IT developments and 
issues (including 
Digital Strategy) 
 

Monitoring contribution of IT 
to change programmes, 
major projects (e.g. rural 
broadband) and policy 
issues in relation to 
underpinning council 
services (e.g. disaster 
recovery plans) 
 

Update has been considered annually. 
Last update received Jan 2020, next 
update due Jan 2021.   

 x 
 

 

Crime & 
Disorder 
(Annual Item 
for Nov mtg) 

Duty to review, 
scrutinise, and report 
on the decisions 
made, and actions 
taken by ‘responsible 
authorities’ under the 
Crime and Disorder 
Act. 
 

This duty passed from the 
Safe & Healthy People 
Select Committee to this 
committee in May 2014 

Request update on work of Hampshire 
Community Safety Strategy Group plus 
particular focus topic:  
 
domestic abuse - Nov 2015  
Prevent - Nov 2016 
Supporting Troubled Families - Nov 
2017  
Child Exploitation - Nov 2018  
Reducing Serious Violence - Nov 2019 
 

x 
 

  

Collation of 
Annual 
Report of 
Select 
Committees 
activity 
(Annual Item) 

To support oversight 
of the scrutiny 
function, and the role 
of this committee to 
ensure scrutiny 
activity is having 
impact and being 
evaluated.  

The Constitution requires 
that this committee report to 
Full Council annually 
providing a summary of the 
activity of the select 
committees 

Last considered at June meeting and 
submitted to Full Council in July 2020 

   

P
age 55



 

Topic Issue Reason for inclusion Status and Outcomes 

5
 N

o
v

 2
0

2
0
 

1
9

 J
a

n
 2

0
2

1
 

4
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
2
1
 

Overview 
(Regular 
updates) 

Climate Change 
Strategy and Action 
Plan updates  

Requested by Chairman  Last Strategy update received Sept 
2020. 
Action plan to receive when timely 

   

Overview  
 

Local Enterprise 
Partnerships 

Requested by Chairman  Introductory presentation Nov 2018, to 
retain for further scrutiny. Chief 
Executive and Chairman of both LEPs 
gave a presentation to March 2019 
meeting.  
Retain for future meeting. 
 

x   

Consultation 
Policy 

Whether 
improvements could 
be made to how the 
County Council 
engages with the 
public. 

Members were aware of 
examples of consultations 
that had not been well 
received by the public and 
wanted to review corporate 
guidance on consultations. 
 

Working group reported to July 2014 
meeting and recommended to Cabinet. 
Cabinet agreed new policy Feb 2015. 
Review of implementation April 2016. To 
retain for future update, timing tbc 

   

Overview Economic Recovery 
Update & Measures 

Requested by the 
Committee at its Sept 2020 
mtg 

Members to be updated on the economy 
and recovery following the Covid-19 
outbreak. 

x   

Overview Broadband matters Requested by the 
Committee at its Sept 2020 
mtg 

Members to be updated on: 

 Gigabit Voucher Scheme 

 F20 Voucher Scheme 

  X 

 

P
age 56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of previous meeting
	Minutes

	7 Economic Recovery Update and Measures
	8 Hampshire Community Safety Strategy Group
	9 Work Programme

